
 

                                                               
                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC WORKSHOP & MEETING 
AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2020  
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A WORK SESSION VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 AT 2:30 P.M. TO JOIN 
THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 

A. Submitted by Samantha Simpson for Nancy Clayshulte; a request to discuss plans to install a fence along the east 
side of a pecan grove on the property located at 1850 Avenida de Mesilla (Case 061046). Zoned: Historic 
Commercial (HC)  

B. Submitted by Michael R. Taylor; a request to discuss plans to enclose a front porch on a dwelling at 2341 Calle 
de Arroyo (Case 061110). Zoned: Historic Commercial 

C. Submitted by Indalencio Prieto and Ladene Vance; a request to adjust the lot lines of three properties to eliminate 
one lot line and combine a portion of an existing lot at 2200 West Union Avenue containing pecan trees with a 
neighboring lot containing pecan trees (Case 061123). Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RF)  

 
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 AT 3:00 P.M. TO 
JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 PASSWORD 
193857. 
  
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one motion 
unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Workshop and Meeting of August 3, 2020. 
B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061113 – 2958 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Robert Hamilton; a request for a zoning permit to repair 

a rock wall at this address. Zoned: Residential, one-acre (R- 1) 
2. Case 061114 – 2958 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Robert Hamilton; a request for a zoning permit to reroof 

a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential, one-acre (R- 1) 
3. Case 061115 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jesus Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to repair 

and repaint the stucco on a commercial structure at this address to match the original color of the structure. 
Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC) 

4. Case 061116 - 2185 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Richard Moreno; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow the internal renovation and the reroofing of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

5. Case 061117 – 2600 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Velia Chavez for Palacios Bar; a request for a zoning 
permit to repair a deteriorating floor in a commercial structure at this address. Zoned: Historic Commercial 
(HC) 
 

 
 



 

   V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES  

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be read 
into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting by 
phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. You 
will be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking.  
 

B.  DECISIONS:  
Zoning Permits: 
1. Case 061046 – 1850 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Samantha Simpson for Nancy Clayshulte; a request 

for a zoning permit to install a farm fence along the east side of a pecan grove on this property, Zoned: Historic 
Residential (HR) (This case was postponed at the May 18 and the August 17, 2020 PZHAC meetings, 
and discussed during the work session.) 

2. Case 061110 –2341 Calle de Arroyo, submitted by Michael R. Taylor; a request for a zoning permit to enclose 
the front porch on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC) (This case was discussed 
during the work session.)  

3. Case 061118 – 2900 Avenida de Mesilla Suite A, submitted by Jerry Grandel for Austy, LLC; a request for 
a zoning permit to allow a temporary patio expansion at the “Spotted Dog Brewery” to be made permanent. 
Zoned: General Commercial (C)  

4. Case 061119 – 2149 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Gabrielle Quintana; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow the construction of covered porches over the front and rear entry landings on a dwelling at this address. 
Zoned: Historic Residential (HR)   

5. Case 061120 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jesus Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
sections of fencing to be installed around a commercial property at this address for security reasons. Zoned: 
Historic Commercial (HC) 

6. Case 061121 – 2185 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Robert Moreno; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the replacement of all six windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 

 
Summary Subdivisions 
7. Case 061112 – 2569 Calle del Oeste, submitted by David T. Coyle and Judy K. Yarasheski; a request for a 

Summary Subdivision to split a 0.55 acre parcel into two 0.275 acre lots. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
8. Case 061123 – Properties at and adjacent to 2200 West Union Avenue, submitted by Indalencio Prieto and 

Ladene Vance; a request for a summary subdivision to adjust the lot lines of three properties to eliminate one 
lot and to combine part of a lot with a neighboring lot. Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RA) (This case was 
discussed during the work session.)  
 

Business Permit 
9. Permit 0856 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Joshua Prieto for “Merch de Mesilla”;  a request for 

a business license to allow the applicant to operate a commercial retail operation at this location selling locally 
made wood and leather products, gift items, and other small retail products.  Zoned: Historic Commercial 
(HC) 

 
 VI. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  
    
VII. ADJOURNMENT   

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted before 11:00 am on 9/18/20 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de 
Mesilla; Public Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle 
de Santiago; Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida 
de Mesilla and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

  

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

  



 
PZHAC WORK SESSION 

ZONING PERMIT 061046 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/20] 

 
Items: 
Submitted by Samantha Simpson for Nancy Clayshulte; a request to discuss plans to install a fence along the east side of a 
pecan grove on the property located at 1850 Avenida de Mesilla (Case 061046). Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC) 
 
This case was postponed by the PZHAC at the May 18 and August 17, 2020 PZHAC meetings in order to allow the 
applicant to present further information, including a survey of the property showing the proposed location of the 
fence, as well as descriptions of the type of fence to be installed that would be more suitable for a property at the 
entry way into Town.    
 
Description of Request: 
The applicant would like to install a five to six foot high fence along a property line on Avenida de Mesilla in order to keep 
trespassers out of a small pecan orchard that is on the property, and to keep her domestic animals on the property. This is a 
triangular shaped property that is bordered on the west by Motel Boulevard, on the east by Avenida de Mesilla, and the on 
the north by a commercial property. A six foot high chain link fence currently runs along the property line on Motel 
Boulevard. The north part of the property contains a dwelling that is occupied by Samantha Simpson, the applicant’s niece.  
 
The applicant had requested permission for a fence that would have consisted of a sheep fence (see attached photos) on 
metal uprights that would run from the chain link fence that terminates at the intersection of Motel Boulevard and Avenida 
de Mesilla to the wall for the dwelling at the north end of the property (see attached survey). Although one of the photos 
showing the type of fence shows two strands of barbed wire at the top, the proposed fence would not have had barbed wire 
anywhere in its construction. The fence was to be entirely on the applicant’s property outside of the seven foot front setback 
and will not intrude on the NM DOT ROW for Avenida de Mesilla.  
 
The applicant has stated that the reason for requesting the metal uprights is that the property is used primarily for agricultural 
purposes as a pecan grove and the irrigation as well as the vibration caused by harvesting the pecans would rapidly 
deteriorate other materials. Because of ongoing issues with trespassing and theft of farming equipment and pecans, 
especially during the harvesting season, a fence is definitely needed for security and safety reasons. 
 
Estimated Cost:  $2000.00 
   
Consistency with the Code: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the fence will be consistent with Chapters 18.33 (Historic Preservation), 18.60 
(General Provisions, Conditions and Exceptions) and 18.35 (HR-Residential Cultural Historic zone) of the Code. 

18.33.080 Historical appropriateness permit. 
A. Identification. A permit for a certificate of historical appropriateness shall be required before any of the following 

actions or work is undertaken: new construction, exterior alteration, demolition or removal. All work or acts of 
new construction or exterior alteration requiring a permit for a certificate of appropriateness shall comply with 
the design criteria established by the precedent styles within the development zone of the proposed work. 

18.35.030 Exterior appearance. 
An application for a permit which would authorize construction, modification, moving or destruction which would 
affect the exterior appearance of any structure, sign, or other improvement affecting use or function must first be 
approved by the commission. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code § 11-2-11.4.C] 

18.60.340 Wall, fence, or hedge. 
E. Walls or fences constructed within the front yard setback area facing a street within the H-R, H-C, R-1 zones 
must be built with the following materials only: stucco, brick, stone, wood, adobe and wrought iron. 
(The proposed fence will not be in the front setbacks of the property.) 

 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed fence will be consistent with the architecture of the Town as well as 
other fences in the Town. The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other 
sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
The applicant will be present by “Zoom” or by phone to discuss viable ideas for a fence that will be both practical from a 
farming point of view as well as suitable to the Town.  
 
  



 
PHOTO OF PROPERTY FROM AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

 
 

PHOTO FROM MOTEL BLVD. SHOWING CHAIN LINK FENCE 

  
  



















 
PZHAC WORK SESSION 

ZONING PERMITS 061110 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/20] 

 
Item: 
Submitted by Michael R. Taylor; a request to discuss plans to enclose a front porch on a dwelling at 2341 Calle de Arroyo 
(Case 061110). Zoned: Historic Commercial 
 
The applicant would like to enclose the porch located at the front entrance to the dwelling. This will be done by building 
a fram wall with windows and a door, with the windows having large screens (see attached diagrams). This would in 
essence create a sunroom at the front of the dwelling. The main issue with this is that the room would block a window 
egress to the outside from a bedroom in the dwelling. The applicant was told that this would not be allowed by the current 
building Code, so the applicant met with CID to determine a solution.  The applicant was told that if the proposed room 
were to be made part of the bedroom with no doors separating the two spaces that the porch could then be enclosed. The 
applicant agreed and will remove a double door that was originally going to separate the rooms, thereby meeting CID’s 
requirement for access.  

According to the applicant, the outside of the wall will be finished to match the exterior of the dwelling. The dwelling is 
in the Historic Register for the Town (see attached). The building, which is adobe, is on a property that was at one time 
part of a larger property, once owned by Edgar Griggs, that contained the Reynolds/Griggs Store on the Plaza (see attached 
Historical Description). The buildings associated with this property are in the Historic Register (see attached).  The 
Historical Register considers the buildings “significant” in that they are “…architecturally outstanding and important in 
the history of the community…”.  

The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed work will not result in any changes to the structure that will affect its 
Historical character, and that the work will be consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The enclosure could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if there are no changes to the structure itself, 
and if the outside of the wall is finished in the same style as the original structure.  
 
Chapter 18.33 – Historic Preservation 
18.33.040 Declaration of purpose and statement of public policy. 
A. The board of trustees declares that the historical heritage of Mesilla and its historic buildings and its historic 
districts are among its most valued and important assets. The board finds that some buildings having historical, 
architectural, aesthetic and cultural value have been neglected, altered or destroyed notwithstanding the feasibility of 
preserving and continuing the use of such buildings and without adequate consideration of the irreplaceable loss to 
the public and the town. The board finds that the historic character of Mesilla is of vital importance in maintaining 
the economy of the town and that its historic landmarks and the buildings in its historic district can be preserved, 
rehabilitated and used. The board finds that this chapter benefits all the residents of Mesilla and all the owners of 
property.  
B. The board of trustees declares as a matter of public policy that the preservation, protection and use of historic 
landmarks and buildings in the historic districts are a public necessity because they have a special character or a 
special historic, architectural, aesthetic or cultural value and thus serve as visible reminders of the history and heritage 
of this town, state and nation. The board declares as a matter of public policy that this chapter is required in the interest 
of the health, safety, welfare and economic well-being of the public. The board declares as a matter of public policy 
that the identification and designation of historic landmarks and historic districts and the approval or disapproval of 
exterior changes to designated property or their demolition or relocation or new construction on the site are stated to 
be a public purpose. [Ord. 2011-03] 
 

Since the proposed work will not change the use or style of the structure, and since the work will need to address the 
guidelines set forth by the Secretary of the Interior for Historic structures as well as the requirements of Section 18.33 – 
Historic Preservation of the Code, the PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed work will meet these requirements. 
Also, the proposed work will need to meet the requirements of the Building code where applicable.  
 
The applicant will be present at the meeting by “Zoom” or by phone to provide further details about the proposed enclosure 
and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 
 
 

 











 
PHOTO OF DWELLING FROM CALLE DE ARROYO (ARROW POINTS TO PORCH) 

 
 

PHOTO OF DWELLING SHOWING ENTRYWAY  

 
 



 
PHOTO OF THE PORCH TO BE ENCLOSED 

 

 
 

 
 
  











 
PZHAC WORK SESSION 

ZONING PERMITS 061110 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/20] 

 
Item: 
Submitted by Indalencio Prieto and Ladene Vance; a request to adjust the lot lines of three properties to eliminate one lot line 
and combine a portion of an existing lot at 2200 West Union Avenue containing pecan trees with a neighboring lot containing 
pecan trees (Case 061123). Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RF) 
 
Description of Request: 
Two of the applicants, Debra and Ladene Vance, own two properties in the RA zoning district having a total of 12 acres. 
Pecan trees make up a large part of these properties. The applicants would like to combine the two properties, and then split 
off the portions of the properties that contain the pecan trees. Mr. Prieto, the neighbor to the east, operates a number 
properties that contain pecan trees, and is interested in acquiring the land containing the pecan trees.  The Vances will retain 
the remainder of the land (3.10 acres). This property will have direct access to Calle del Sur. All opf the resulting lots will 
meet the three acre size required by the RA zoning of the properties. 
 
The primary issues with the request were that the northernmost property (4 acres), would be land locked and would not have 
access to a street. The applicants were informed of this and are in the process of extending an existing 20 foot wide easement 
to the property. This easement will need to meet Fire Code standards to allow emergency equipment to the property. 
Additionally, water and liquid waste requirements will need to meet legal standard for development of the property.  These 
issues could be resolved if the northern property were to be combined with a neighboring property. 
 
The applicants also need to ensure that the rear setbacks for the dwelling will be met once the new property line is created. 
 
The applicants have requested to be at the work session to in order to hear if there were any other unforeseen issues that 
need to be addressed before the lot line adjustments can take place, or if the lot line adjustments could take place once any 
conditions are met.  

 
The applicants will be present at the meeting by “Zoom” or by phone to provide further details about the proposed 
enclosure and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 
 
  











 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC 

WORK SESSION & REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 

 

 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



 

 

                                                               
                                                                                                  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

PZHAC WORKSHOP & MEETING 
MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 8, 2020  
 

THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD A WORK SESSION VIA TELECONFERENCE ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 AT 2:30 P.M. TO 
JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 
PASSWORD 193857. 
 

A. Discussion of replacing windows (Case 061051) on a dwelling at 2447 Calle del Norte, submitted by Matilde 
Estrada. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
The applicant was present by zoom to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise. Staff 
provided a brief review of this request, including the fact that this case had been postponed at the June 15, 
20210 PZHAC meeting in order to allow the applicant to modify the window plans to meet the PZHAC’s 
requirement that the style of the replacement window match the style of the windows being replaced, and to 
provide plans for the bedroom windows that meet CID requirements for egress. The applicant’s daughter, 
Matilda Estrada, explained that the provider of the windows, Window World, does not have any patterns 
that could match the dining or living room windows, and that a latticework that matched each of the 
windows will be built over the windows after they are installed.   Ms. Estrada also explained that her mother 
is willing to work with CID to determine what will be needed for the bedroom windows. There were no 
further issues.  
 

B. Discussion of a combined barn and guest house (Case 061084) to be built on a property at 2515 Snow Road, 
submitted by John and Judy Harris. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
The applicant was present by zoom to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise. Staff 
provided a brief review of this request, including the fact that this case had been postponed at the June 15, 
20210 PZHAC meeting in order to allow the applicant to modify the dwelling plans to meet the maximum 
square footage (600 square feet) for a guest house in the Rural Farm (RF) zone. This was because the 
PZHAC does not recognize the original five-acre lot as having been legally subdivided. Staff explained that 
a lot line created for tax purposes is not considered by the Town as the same as a lot line created to divide 
two lot as a subdivision, and that the four acres originally presented by the applicants as a separate lot was 
not recognized by the Town as an actual separate lot. There were no other issues. 

 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL 
HOLD A REGULAR MEETING VIA TELECONFERENCE ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2020 AT 3:00 
P.M. TO JOIN THE MEETING BY PHONE DIAL 1-346-248-7799, THEN ENTER Meeting ID 603-754-4231 
PASSWORD 193857. 
  
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

Commissioner Lucero was absent. All other Commissioners were present. There was a quorum. Commissioner 
Prieto was acting chair. 
 
Others in attendance by “Zoom” or by phone were: Mayor Barraza, Cynthia Stoehner-Hernandez (staff), Judy 
Harris, Jon Strain, Billy Rogers and Susan Krueger. The regular meeting was convened at 3:20 pm. 

 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

There were no changes to the Agenda. A motion to approve the Agenda was made by Commissioner Houston, 
seconded by Commissioner Salas, and approved by a vote of 4 - 0. 



 

 

 
 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
There were no changes to the Consent Agenda. A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by 
Commissioner Houston, seconded by Commission Chair Salas, and approved by a vote of 4 - 0. 
 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Workshop and Meeting of August 17, 2020. 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 
Zoning Permit: 
1. Case 061102 - 2785 Boldt Street, submitted by Barncastle Construction for NovaSight Properties, LLC; a 

request for a zoning permit to allow the renovation of the interior of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

2. Case 061104 – 2371 Calle de Santiago, submitted by Richard Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to 
repair and repaint the stucco on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

3. Case 061105 – 1717 West Boutz Road, submitted by John Wright; a request for a zoning permit to reroof 
the apartment structure at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
 Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
  

4. Case 061106 – 3215 Snow Road, submitted by Jeanne Rundell; a request for a zoning permit to repair a 
wall on a dwelling at this address that had been hit by a car. Zoned: Rural Farm (RF) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

5. Case 061107 – 2245 Calle de Colon, submitted by Roberto Garcia; a request for a zoning permit to patch 
and repaint portions of the stucco on a wall at the front of the residential property at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

   V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES  

Public input shall be received at larrys@mesillanm.gov at least one hour prior to the meeting and will be 
read into the record. You will also be given an opportunity to speak during this time by joining the meeting 
by phone and pressing *9 while in the teleconference. This will let the host know that you wish to speak. 
You will be prompted by the host or the Commission Chair when to begin speaking.  
Staff stated that one e-mail had been received from Susan Krueger, resident. Staff read the e-mail for 
inclusion into the record. (A copy of the e-mail is attached at the end of these minutes.) 
 

B.  DECISIONS:  
Zoning Permits: 
1. Case 061051 – 2447 Calle del Norte, submitted by Matilde Estrada; a request for a zoning permit to allow 

the replacement of nine windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
(Postponed at the June 15, 2020 PZHAC meeting) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that this case was heard during the Work 
Session. It was determined that the proposed latticework would be acceptable for the windows, and that 
the bedroom windows would need to be approved by CID for egress requirements.  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Salas and seconded by Commissioner Nevarez to recommend approval of the request to 
the BOT, and  the request was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0 with the following CONDITIONS: 
1. The bedroom windows are to be approved by CID for egress. 
2. A latticework frame duplicating the appearance of the original windows is to be built over the living 

and dining room windows.   
 
 

mailto:larrys@mesillanm.gov


 

 

2. Case 061084 –2515 Snow Road, submitted by John and Judy Harris, a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the construction of a combined barn and guest house on the property at this location. Zoned: Rural Farm 
(RF) (Postponed at the June 15, 2020 PZHAC meeting) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that this case was heard during the Work 
Session. It was determined that the proposed 600 square foot “guest house” would be acceptable for the 
property. There were no other issues.  A motion was made by Commissioner Salas to approve the request, 
seconded by Commissioner Nevarez, and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 

3. Case 061100 – 2120 Calle del Sur, submitted by Davie Salas; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
placement of four latia fences on a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
(Postponed at the June 15, 2020 PZHAC meeting) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that this case was postponed at the last PZHAC 
meeting due to the fact that there was no quorum to vote on the case once Commissioner Salas recused 
himself from the vote. The PZHAC determined that there were no issues with the proposed request.  A 
motion was made by Commissioner Nevarez to recommend approval the request to the BOT, seconded by 
Commissioner Houston, and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 3 – 0. (Commissioner Salas 
recused himself from voting on the request.) 
 

4. Case 061108 – 2510 Calle de Parian, submitted by F. Xavier Alcala; a request for a zoning permit to repaint 
a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, stating that the dwelling was painted by the applicant prior 
to obtaining a zoning permit for painting the dwelling. Staff explained the current owner of the property 
bought the property recently from the estate of the previous owner, who had passed in December 2019. 
The current owner painted the dwelling prior to moving in. According to the current owner (the 
applicant), he was unaware that a permit was necessary. Discussion of the request included the fact that 
both colors chosen for the dwelling are listed in the Town’s approved catalog of colors. Additionally, 
although the trim might appear to be a little brighter than what was on the dwelling originally, the colors 
are not necessarily out of character with the Town. The PZHAC determined that there were no issues 
with the proposed request and that the dwelling would not be out of character with the Town.  A motion 
was made by Commissioner Salas and seconded by Commissioner Houston to recommend approval the 
request to the BOT and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 

5. Case 061109 – 2755 Calle de San Albino, submitted by Teresa Sanchez for ETMSS 2, LLC; a request for a 
zoning permit to replace three windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
The applicant was present if any questions arose. Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining 
that the applicant would like to replace three windows on the dwelling with windows that would be very 
similar in appearance to the windows being replaced. The applicant stated that two of the windows would 
be on the northside and one would be on the rear of the dwelling, and that the stucco around each 
window will extend to the glass.  The PZHAC determined that there were no issues with the proposed 
request and that the dwelling would not be out of character with the Town.  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Nevarez and seconded by Commissioner Salas to recommend approval the request to the 
BOT and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 

6. Case 061110 – 105 Capri Road, submitted by J. Brooks Wolle; a request for a zoning permit to place two 
small storage sheds on a residential property at this address as a replacement of an older storage shed on the 
property. Zoned: Residential, one acre minimum (R-1) 
The applicant was present if any questions arose. Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining 
that the applicant would like to replace an existing storage shed on the property with one of the new 
sheds and that the second shed would be used by the applicant’s wife. Issues discussed were the fact that 
size of the property was less than the one acre required by the R-1 zoning of the property and that 
anything built or added to the property would be considered legal non-conforming. According to the 
PZHAC, since the property is legal non-conforming, new structures (other than replacements of existing 
structures) or additions would not be allowed.  The PZHAC determined that since the sheds were small 
and would not be made permanent, they were not additions to the property did not fit the classification of 
being legal non-conforming structures.  A motion was made by Commissioner Salas and seconded by 
Commissioner Houston to approve the request, and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 
 

 



 

 

Business Permits 
7. Permit 0854 – 1750 Calle de Mercado, Suite 4, submitted by Tatsu Miyazaki for “World Class Gourmet, 

LLC”; a request for a business license to allow the applicant s to operate a restaurant and catering operation 
at this location. Zoned: General Commercial (C)  
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the applicant would be operating sa catering 
and food service operation out of a building that was originally designed as a restaurant, and was 
approved by the PZHAC for use as a restaurant or catering operation for the building’s current owner 
(Anna Biad). There were no issues. A motion was made by Commissioner Salas and seconded by 
Commissioner Houston to approve the request, and the request was APPROVED by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 

8. Permit 0855 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”;  a request for a 
business license to allow the applicant to operate a commercial retail operation at this location selling 
imported yard art and décor, Mexican pottery, custom wood chairs, and other imported and domestic gift 
items. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC)  
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the applicant (Commissioner Prieto) would 
be operating a retail business selling various items out of a building and part of the property that has 
historically been used for retail sales. There were no issues. (Commissioner Prieto recused himself from 
voting on the case. Commissioner Houston was the acting Chair.) A motion was made by Commissioner 
Salas and seconded by Commissioner Nevarez to approve the request, and the request was APPROVED 
by a vote of 3 – 0. 
 

Sign Permit 
9. Case 061112 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Roman Prieto for “Prieto Imports”; a request for a 

sign permit to install a sign on a business at this address. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that the applicant (Commissioner Prieto) was 
requesting a freestanding sign that would hang from a sign pole that has been used for signs for prior 
businesses that have been located here, even though the current sign code does not specifically allow the 
type of sign requested. Commissioner made a motion to recommend approval of the requested sign to the 
BOT based on the fact that similar signs have been allowed on the property in the past, seconded by 
commissioner Nevarez, and the request was approved by a vote of 3 – 0. (Commissioner Prieto recused 
himself from voting.)  

 
 VI. PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS  

Staff was asked to give a brief rundown on Codes Enforcement. Staff explained that one day a week (Friday) 
would be spent working for the Marshal’s department, and that the day would be spent working entirely on Code 
Enforcement.  The first two Fridays were spent following up on cases from several months ago. Staff also 
explained that Code violations were now being entered into the same crime recoding system used by the Marshal’s 
department.  
    

VII. ADJOURNMENT   
The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 pm. 

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 9/2/20 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 







 

 

 

 

 
 
 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



 ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061113 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/21/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061113 – 2958 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Robert Hamilton; a request for a zoning permit to 
repair a rock wall at this address. Zoned: Residential, one-acre (R- 1) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair flaking concrete and cracks in the rock wall around the front of the dwelling at 
his address. There will be no changes to the appearance of the wall or the dwelling, nor will there be any 
changes to any other part of the property.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the proposed repairs will not affect or change the appearance of the property, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM LA MESILLA CIRCLE 

 
 

  







ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061114 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/21/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061114 – 2958 La Mesilla Circle, submitted by Robert Hamilton; a request for a zoning permit to 
reroof a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential, one-acre (R- 1) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will reroof a dwelling at his address to repair weather damage. There will be no structural 
changes to the dwelling and the reroof will not change the appearance of the structure, nor will there will 
be any changes to any other parts of the property.  
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the proposed reroof of the dwelling will not affect or change the appearance of the property, 
according to the applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to 
heated/cooled areas of the structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) -
 Application for building permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –
“Applications that are minor repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to 
structures (buildings), walls or any other permanent fixtures on site may be approved 
administratively by staff…. Once all required information is provided, the Community 
Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM LA MESILLA CIRCLE 

 
 

  







ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061115 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/21/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061115 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jesus Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to 
repair and repaint the stucco on a commercial structure at this address to match the original color of the 
structure. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair portions of worn and eroded stucco on a commercial structure at this address. 
The repaired stucco will then be painted to match the rest of the structure. There will be no other changes 
to the structure as a result of this permit.  
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the repair and repainting of portions of the stucco on the structure and will not affect or change the 
appearance of the property, and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to 
heated/cooled areas of the structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) -
 Application for building permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –
“Applications that are minor repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to 
structures (buildings), walls or any other permanent fixtures on site may be approved 
administratively by staff…. Once all required information is provided, the Community 
Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

 
 







ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061116 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/21/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061116 - 2185 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Richard Moreno; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow the internal renovation and the reroofing of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential 
(HR) 
   
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will renovate the inside of a dwelling, including repairs to the walls, bathroom and kitchen, 
and some electrical rewiring; as well as reroof the dwelling. None of the work will result in any changes 
to the exterior of the dwelling, and there will be no changes to the appearance of the dwelling as a result 
of the work to be done.    
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the renovation of the interior or the reroof of the dwelling will not affect or change the appearance 
of the exterior of the structure, and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to 
heated/cooled areas of the structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) -
 Application for building permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –
“Applications that are minor repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to 
structures (buildings), walls or any other permanent fixtures on site may be approved 
administratively by staff…. Once all required information is provided, the Community 
Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM CALLE DE MEDANOS 

 

















ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 061117 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA – 9/21/20] 
 
 

Item: 
Case 061117 – 2600 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Velia Chavez for Palacios Bar; a request for a 
zoning permit to repair a deteriorating floor in a commercial structure at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Commercial (HC) 
 
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair part of a dance floor that is deteriorating. The repairs will consist of replacing 
damaged flooring with new and used flooring materials that will match the existing flooring. There will 
be no changes to in appearance to the exterior of the structure.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since the repairs will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the structure, the 
permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building permit, 
Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor repairs 
or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any other 
permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the Community Development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

VIEW OF THE PROPERTY FROM CALLE DE COLON  

 
 







 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

ZONING PERMITS 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061046 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 

 
[Case was heard during the work session] 

 
Items: 
Case 061046 – 1850 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Samantha Simpson for Nancy Clayshulte; a request for a zoning 
permit to install a farm fence along the east side of a pecan grove on this property, Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) (This 
case was postponed at the May 18 and the August 17, 2020 PZHAC meetings, and discussed during the work 
session.) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant presented a possible fence option at the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to 
the information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the style of fence preferred by the applicant is acceptable to the Town meets all applicable codes, or 
if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will 
be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the chosen fence style is not acceptable to the Town or does not meet all 
applicable codes, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until 
the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the 
request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed. 
 

 
Estimated Cost: @ $TBD 
 
Findings That Need to be Made. 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed fence is historically and architecturally appropriate for the Town.   
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.  Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request.  
4.  Reject the request. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061110 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/8/2020] 

 
[Case was heard during the work session] 

 
Items: 
Case 061110 –2341 Calle de Arroyo, submitted by Michael R. Taylor; a request for a zoning permit to enclose the front 
porch on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC)  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed work was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting. (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed porch enclsure is acceptable to the Town as proposed and meets all applicable codes, 
or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code 
will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed porch enclsure is not acceptable to the Town or does not meet all 
applicable codes, and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until 
the applicant can return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the 
request based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed. 

 
Estimated Cost: @ $8,000.00 
 
Findings That Need to be Made. 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed consists of enclosing a front porch at the entrance to the dwelling.   
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed porch enclosure meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.  Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request.  
4.  Reject the request. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061118 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 

 
 
Case 061118 – 2900 Avenida de Mesilla Suite A, submitted by Jerry Grandel for Austy, LLC; a request for a zoning 
permit to allow a temporary patio expansion at the “Spotted Dog Brewery” to be made permanent. Zoned: General 
Commercial (C) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
The applicant currently has permission from both Mesilla and the Alcohol and Gaming Division of the State to 
have a temporary expansion of the existing outdoor serving area that is currently an approved part of the 
business. The temporary expansion of this area was allowed by the State until October 10 to allow increased 
outdoor service during the COVID-19 pandemic, providing that certain conditions were met. The applicant 
met those conditions (see attached documentation) and his expansion was permitted by both Mesilla 
(administratively) and the State. The applicant would now like to have this area approved as a permanent 
expansion. If approved by the PZHAC and the BOT, the applicant will apply to the State for permanent 
approval of the expansion.  
 
The proposed addition will add 376.6 square feet of service area to the applicant’s operation, resulting in a 
total of 2877.22 square feet for the business.  The applicant currently requires 25 parking spaces (one space for 
every 100 square feet of gross floor area.) The added area will result in four additional spaces being required 
for a total requirement of 29 spaces. The applicant currently has over 40 spaces at the rear of the adjacent 
convenience store that the applicant leases from the property owner. The increased temporary service area that 
is currently allowed is at the front of the building does not take up any existing parking spaces. The area also 
meets current State requirements for serving alcohol. This is the area that the applicant would like to make 
permanent. The applicant intends to meet any additional requirements the State may have with respect to 
permanent serving areas. 
 
Estimated Cost: @ $800.00 
   
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed serving area will be consistent with the development of 
properties in the General Commercial (C) zoning district. Additionally, the request appears to meet all other 
development and application requirements of the Code.  
  
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with all other sections of 
the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of making a temporary serving area permanent.  
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed fences meet the Code. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the request to the BOT.  
2. Recommend approval of the request to the BOT with conditions.  

 3.  Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request.  
 4.  Reject the request. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 
 





 
PHOTOS OF THE PROPOSED SERVING AREA  

 
 

 





















 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061119 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061119 – 2149 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Gabrielle Quintana; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
construction of covered porches over the front and rear entry landings on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic 
Residential (HR) 
 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The applicant has just recently purchased the dwelling from the estate of the previous owner who passed in December 
2019 and painted the dwelling prior to obtaining a zoning permit from the Town. The current owner (the applicant) was 
advised by staff that a zoning permit is needed for all work that is done the exteriors of  any structures or properties in 
the Historic Districts of Mesilla, and that certain historic and architectural standards need to be reviewed and approved 
by the PZHAC and the BOT.  
 
The colors chosen by the applicant, an off white and a medium blue (see attached photos), are very similar or identical to 
colors that are in the palette of acceptable color for the Town (see attached color charts). The PZHAC will need to 
determine that the colors used are not be out of character with the colors of other dwellings in the Historic Residential 
district.   
 
ESTIMATED COST: @ $7,000.00 
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed porches are consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

18.06.110 Review of applications within Historical and General Commercial zones – Considerations. 
A. All applications for work in the Historical zones and Commercial zone (not subject to administrative approval) 

shall be reviewed by the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission. The commission shall 
determine whether the request involved will be appropriate for the purposes of this title. If the request shall be 
determined to be inappropriate, the board shall determine whether, owing to conditions especially affecting the 
building or structure involved, but not affecting the historical district generally, such application may be approved 
without substantial detriment to the public welfare and without substantial derogation of the intent and purposes of 
this title. 

B. In reviewing an application, the planning, zoning and historical appropriateness commission shall consider in 
addition to this chapter: 
1. The historical and literary value and significance of the site, building, or structure; 
2. The general design, arrangement, texture, material and color of the features, sign or billboard involved; 
3. The relation of such factors to similar factors or sites, buildings and structures in the immediate surroundings;  
4. The appropriateness of the size and shape of the building or structure in relation to: 

a. The land area upon which the building or structure is situated; 
b. The landscaping and planting features proposed by the applicant; and 
c. The neighboring sites, buildings or structures within the historical district. 

5. The commission shall also consider the applicable zoning and other laws of the town. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed consists of constructing porches over the entryway to the dwelling.    
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.  Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request.  
4.  Reject the request. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
  



 
PHOTOS OF THE FRONT AND REAR OF THE DWELLING SHOWING PROPOSED LOCATIONS 

 

 





























 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061120 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061120 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jesus Lucero; a request for a zoning permit to allow sections of 
fencing to be installed around a commercial property at this address for security reasons. Zoned: Historic Commercial 
(HC) 
 
The applicant would like to add sections of fence to an existing fence and wall (see site plan for the posed configuration 
of the fence sections) in order to enclose the entire property for security purposes. There are two types of fences to be 
used. One will consist of a wood frame around wire sheep fencing (see attached photos) that will be six feet tall. The 
second will be a corrugated metal and wood fence six feet tall (see attached photos).  
 
A 25 foot section of the wood and wire fence will run from the edge of an existing wall and fence at the front of the 
property along the south property line to a proposed section of corrugated metal fence that will extend about thirty feet 
along the south property line to an existing block wall. From the wall, which extends to the rear property line, two 
sections of fence, one a 30 foot long corrugated metal and the other a 45 foot long wood and wire fence, will run north 
along the west (rear) property line to an eighteen foot long section of corrugated fence to be located along the north 
property line that will then connect with the applicant’s building. Additionally, a fifty foot long section of wood and wire 
fence will run north-south through the middle of the property. 
 
A right-of-entry agreement will be needed with one of the property owners along the southern property line. The other 
property along the southern property line has the existing wall and there will not be a fence on the property line with this 
property. The applicant owns the property to the west.  
 
Consistency with the Code: The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed fence styles will be compatible with 
the fence styles allowed in the Town. (Examples of both styles of fence had been allowed throughout Town.) The 
proposed fences will need to be consistent with the following sections of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The fence could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if the PZHAC determines that the fence sections 
enhance the Historical nature of the dwelling.  
 
Chapter 18.33 – Historic Preservation 
18.33.040 Declaration of purpose and statement of public policy. 
A. The board of trustees declares that the historical heritage of Mesilla and its historic buildings and its historic 
districts are among its most valued and important assets. The board finds that some buildings having historical, 
architectural, aesthetic and cultural value have been neglected, altered or destroyed notwithstanding the feasibility 
of preserving and continuing the use of such buildings and without adequate consideration of the irreplaceable loss 
to the public and the town. The board finds that the historic character of Mesilla is of vital importance in 
maintaining the economy of the town and that its historic landmarks and the buildings in its historic district can be 
preserved, rehabilitated and used. The board finds that this chapter benefits all the residents of Mesilla and all the 
owners of property.  
 

Estimated Cost: @ $5,000.00 
   
Findings that need to be made: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The proposed work consists of replacing windows on a dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.  Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request.  
4.  Reject the request. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 





 
VIEWS OF THE PROPERTY FROM AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

 

 
 













 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 061121 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 

 
Items: 
Case 061121 – 2185 Calle de Guadalupe, submitted by Robert Moreno; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
replacement of all six windows on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
 
The applicant would like to replace six windows on the dwelling with new windows that are in better condition and are 
more thermally efficient. The windows will be the same size as the original windows and will have a similar pattern as 
the windows being replaced (see attached catalogue from Home Depot). The replacement windows will be set in vinyl 
and will be set into the walls to match the existing window appearances. The replacement windows will be a clay color, 
the existing windows are a peeling brown color painted over aluminum.  
 
The structure is in the Historic Register (see attached) and appears to have been built around 1900. Attached are the 
Historical Registry worksheet and the description sheet for the structure which were submitted by the Town as part of 
the application for inclusion in the Historical Register in 1980 (see attached). The structure was described as being 
similar to its surroundings and contributing architecturally to the area. The dwelling also appears to have been in the 
process of being remodeled at the time the inventory for the Historic Register was done. The existing windows appear to 
have been installed at that time.  
 
Consistency with the Code: The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed windows will be compatible with the 
style of the structure and the surrounding properties, and the proposed windows will be consistent with the following 
sections of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The windows could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if the PZHAC determines that the 
replacement windows enhance the Historical nature of the dwelling.  
 
Chapter 18.33 – Historic Preservation 
18.33.040 Declaration of purpose and statement of public policy. 
A. The board of trustees declares that the historical heritage of Mesilla and its historic buildings and its historic 
districts are among its most valued and important assets. The board finds that some buildings having historical, 
architectural, aesthetic and cultural value have been neglected, altered or destroyed notwithstanding the feasibility 
of preserving and continuing the use of such buildings and without adequate consideration of the irreplaceable loss 
to the public and the town. The board finds that the historic character of Mesilla is of vital importance in 
maintaining the economy of the town and that its historic landmarks and the buildings in its historic district can be 
preserved, rehabilitated and used. The board finds that this chapter benefits all the residents of Mesilla and all the 
owners of property.  
 

Estimated Cost: @ $4,500.00 
   
Findings that need to be made: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and recommend approval of this request to the BOT. 
• The proposed work consists of replacing six windows on a dwelling at this address. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.  Postpone a decision on the request to allow the applicant to modify the request.  
4.  Reject the request. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 
  





 
VIEW OF THE FRONT AND REAR OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE DE MEDANOS 

 
 

 









cynthia
Rectangle



cynthia
Rectangle

cynthia
Oval







 

 
 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

 

 

BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION REQUEST 
[PZHAC REVIEW –9/21/2020] 

 
Item: 
Permit 0856 – 2230 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Joshua Prieto for “Merch de Mesilla”;  a request for a business 
license to allow the applicant to operate a commercial retail operation at this location selling locally made wood and leather 
products, gift items, and other small retail products.  Zoned: Historic Commercial (HC) 
 
Description of Business: 
The purpose of the application is to allow the applicant to use 5400 square feet of the existing structure for the commercial 
sale of locally made wood and leather products, gift items, and other small retail products that you would find in a gift and 
mercantile shop. The proposed use will not result in any changes to the historic use of the structure or property or change 
the character of the area.  The applicant will share the building with his brother who received a business permit (0855) from 
the PZHAC on September 8, 2020 to operate a retail shop here selling imported products. 
 
Consistency with the Code: 
The proposed use will be consistent with the following sections of the Code: 
Chapter 18.40 – HISTORICAL COMMERCIAL ZONE (HC) 

18.40.020 – Uses Permitted 
Uses permitted in the H-C zone are as follows: 

Commercial uses allowed in C zone and residential uses subject to approval of the planning, zoning and historical 
appropriateness commission upon application and approval of a development plan. [Ord. 2001-04 § 1; Ord. 94-06 
§ 1; prior code § 11-2-11.5.B] 

Uses permitted in the C zone (Section 18.45.020) include, but are not limited to:  
Clothing stores, dry goods stores, furniture stores, gift shops, notions stores, secondhand stores, and several other 
operations that could be considered very similar to the proposed use. 

 
The requested license will not result in any changes to the external physical elements or style of the structure. There is an 
open area alongside the commercial building that will be used as a display area for the business.  There will be some 
cosmetic changes to the interior of the structure. The business will be subject to a $150 per year parking fee to make up for 
the deficiency in off-street parking. 

 
Findings of Fact: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed business will not result in any changes to the commercial character of the structure. 
• This is a use that is allowed by the MTC in this zoning district. 
• The proposed use will not create any negative impacts to the area. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

Approve the application.     
Approve the application with conditions. 
Reject the application. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
  



 
VIEW OF LOCATION FROM AVENIDA DE MESILLA 

 

 
 

 









 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

 

 

SUMMARY SUBDIVISIONS 

 

 



   SUMMARY SUBDIVISION REQUEST 
CASE 061112 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 
 

 
Item:  
Case 061112 – 2569 Calle del Oeste, submitted by David T. Coyle and Judy K. Yarasheski; a request for a 
Summary Subdivision to split a 0.55 acre parcel into two 0.275 acre lots. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
Description of Request: 
The current property is Lot 2 of the GM Madrid Subdivision filed with Dona Ana County in 2011. This is a 0.55 
acre parcel of land that is currently vacant.  The applicants would like to divide the parcel exactly in half with the 
dividing line running east-west through the middle of the property from the property line along Calle del Oeste to 
the west property line along the EBID Lateral (see attached subdivision plat). Both properties will front on Calle 
del Oeste and have access to the road and utilities. The applicants intend to construct a single family dwelling on 
each parcel.  
 
The proposed lot size of 0.275 acres (11,979 square feet) for each lot is well above the minimum lot size of 8000 
square feet required for new lots in the HR zone. Also, since both lots will have 92 feet of frontage along Calle del 
Oeste, both lots will meet the frontage requirement of 80 feet. Utilities will be available to both lots from Calle del 
Oeste. (The applicants will need to provide utility stub-outs to each lot.) The proposed subdivision also appears to 
meet all of the requirements of Section 17.35 (Alternate Summary Procedure) of the Code.    
 
When the property was created as part of the original GM Subdivision in 2011, the subdivider, Gilbert F. Madrid, 
attached a deed restriction to the deed for the property (see attached) limiting the development of the original 
parcel to one single family dwelling along with other uses, including a guest house, as “…may be allowed by the 
Ordinances of the Town of Mesilla….” Although the Town cannot legally enforce deed restrictions, this is brought 
up here at the request of Mr. Madrid for informational purposes, and to show his intent that there would only be 
one main dwelling and a guest house on the entire property. (Since the HR zoning of the property currently 
requires 8,000 square feet of property for each dwelling to be built on a property, and since each property will be 
only 11,980 square feet in size, only one dwelling will be allowed on each new property. The Code will not allow 
any secondary dwellings or “guest houses” as accessory uses to the main dwelling on each property.)  
 
The applicants will be present by phone to provide more information if necessary and to answer any questions the 
PZHAC may have.  
 
Findings of Fact that need to be met: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed lot split creating two 0.275 acre (11,979 square feet) lots from a 0.55 acre lot is allowed in the 

HR zoning district. 
• There will be no significant negative impacts generated by the proposed lot split.  
• The proposed lot split will not have major negative impacts on Town services to the lot or to the area.  
• The proposed lot split area meets all other applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

1. Recommend approval of the summary subdivision a requested to the BOT. 
2. Recommend approval of the summary subdivision as requested to the BOT with conditions.  
3. Reject the requested summary subdivision. 

 
PZHAC ACTION: 



PHOTOS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM CALLE DEL OESTE 

 
 

 











   SUMMARY SUBDIVISION REQUEST 
CASE 061123 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 9/21/2020] 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented at Work Session) 
 
Item:  
Case 061123 – Properties at and adjacent to 2200 West Union Avenue, submitted by Indalencio Prieto and Ladene 
Vance; a request for a summary subdivision to adjust the lot lines of three properties to eliminate one lot and to 
combine part of a lot with a neighboring lot. Zoned: Rural/Agricultural (RA) (This case was discussed during the 
work session.)  
 
Description of Request: 
(Discussed during Work Session) 
 
Staff Analysis:  
The lot line adjustments were discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  If it is determined 
that the proposal is acceptable for the area as proposed, or if an alternate solution is arrived at, then the case can 
proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC should continue on to 
approve the request based on the Findings of Fact stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed lot line adjustments would not be acceptable to the area, 
and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the case until the applicant can 
return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request 
based on the request not meeting any or all of the Findings of Fact as listed.  
 
Findings of Fact that need to be met: 
• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed lot split creating two 0.49 acre lots from a 0.99 acre lot is allowed in the HR zoning district. 
• There will be no significant negative impacts generated by the proposed lot split.  
• The proposed lot split will not have major negative impacts on Town services to the lot or to the area.  
• The proposed lot split area meets all other applicable Code requirements. 
 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 

1. Have the applicant proceed with the proposed summary subdivision and submit a survey of the summary 
subdivision as proposed . 

2. Have the applicant proceed with the proposed summary subdivision and submit a survey of the summary 
subdivision with changes suggested by the PZHAC. 

3. Reject the requested summary subdivision. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 
 
 
 




